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Independent Auditors' Report

To Honorable Members of City Council
City of Fowler, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Fowler, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation

and fair presentation of the financial statements in arder to design audit procedures that are appropriate in’
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's

internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Fowler as of June 30, 2015, and the respective
changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter — Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note C.1. to the financial statements, City of Fowler adopted new accounting guidance,
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pensions Transition for contributions made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68.  Our apinion is not modified with respect

to this matter.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information, Schedules of the City’s Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension Liability, and Schedules of City Pension Contributions as listed in the table of contents
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 12,
2016, on our consideration of City of Fowler internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controi over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Fowler internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

Fresno, California
January 12, 2016



CITY OF FOWLER
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
June 30, 2015

INTRODUCTION

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Fowler's (City's) financial performance provides an overview of
the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. it should be read in conjunction with the
City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

a In 2015, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions and related GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date. These standards require the City to recognize its
proportionate share of the net pension asset or liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources, and related expenses from its participation in the California Public Employees'
Retirement Systems. The results of these statements include recognizing a net pension liability
for the two defined benefit plans and related deferred cutflows and deferred inflows of resources.
The cumulative effect of implementing these statements resulted in a restatement of beginning net
position as detailed in Note C.1 to the financial statements.

Q Total net position was $25,632,087 at June 30, 2015.

0 Overall revenues totaled $6,832,428 which exceeded expenses by $388,445,
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts — management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a
comprehensive overview of the City. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of
statements that present financial information from different perspectives:

2 Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both
short-term and long-term information about the entity’'s overall financial position.

a Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of the City operations in more
detail. The fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

« Governmental funds statements tell how general government services were financed in the
short term as well as what remains for future spending.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information that further explains and supports the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the
government's assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the
statement of activities regardiess of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net position and how they have changed. Net
position, (the difference hetween the assets and [iabilities) is one way to measure the City’s financial heaith
or position.

1 OQver time, increases or decreases in the City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

a To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional nenfinancial factors such
as changes in the property tax base, changes in program funding by the Federal and State
governments, and condition of facilities.



The government-wide financial statements of the City inciude government activities. Most of the City’s basic
services are included here, such as Community Development, Public Safety and general administration.
Lease revenue funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds-not
the City as a whole. Funds are accounting devises that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of
funding and spending for particular programs. Some funds are required to be established by state law and
by bond covenants. The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that the City is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain revenues. The City has
three kinds of funds:

0 Governmental funds - All of the City's basic services are included in governmental funds, which
generally focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash
flow in and out and (2) the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently,
the governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
government funds statements that explain the reiationship (or differences) between them.

Q Proprietary funds ~ When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether to
outside customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
statement of net position and the statement of activities.

O Fiduciary funds — the City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others; for the City,
the Redevelopment Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund is an agency fund. The City is
responsible for ensuring that assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are reported
in the fiduciary fund financial statements. We exclude these activities from the City-wide financial
statements because the City cannot use the assets to finance its operations.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE
Net Position

The City's combined net position were $25,632,087 at June 30, 2015. See Table 1.

Table 1
Net Position
Business- Business- Total
Governmentatl Type Governmental Type Percentage
Activitles Activities Activities Activities Change
2015 2015 2014 2014 2015-2014
ASSETS
Cash $ 4,886,670 $ 1,530,567 3 4,532,383 $ 1661289 3.61%
Cash with Fiscal Agent 476,337 - 475,864 0.10%
Accounts Receivable 227,020 185,137 145,841 123,947 41.65%
Intergovemmental Receivable - 66,662 16,819 66,662 (20.15%)
Assessments Receivable 1,135,618 - 1219,183 - (6.85%)
Community Loans 478,436 - 858,777 - (14.07 %)
Land Held for Resale 153,794 - 163,794 - 0.00%
Deposits with Others 6,369 - (14,397) - >(100.00%)
Capital Assets, Nondepreciable 2,772,468 432,816 2,764 592 392,773 152%
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated
Depreciation 17,744,992 4,308,149 17,577,795 4,414 906 0.27%
TOTAL ASSETS 27,881,704 6,493,331 27,428,651 6,659,577 0.84%
Deferred Qutflows of Resources - P 361,028 49,320 - ~ N/A
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 59,124 23,085 99,869 50,304 (45.26%)
Accrued Liabilities 175,114 - 174,824 - 0.17%
Accrued Interest Payable 44,743 - 46,419 - (3.61%)
Consumer Deposits - 94,586 - 71,842 31.66%
Debt Due in One Year 292,256 43,176 265,000 42,800 8.94%
Long- Tem Debt 5,699,831 2,072,586 3,270,809 1,761,805 54.44%
TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,271,068 2,233,363 3,857,011 1,926,851 47.04%
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pen 570,878 77,987 - - NIA
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt 17,332,460 3,000,438 16,802,387 3,024,149 2.09%
Restricted for:
Special Revenue 2,321,275 - 2,415,995 - 9.70%
Debt Service 1,413,951 - 937,530 - 50.82%
Capital Projects 1,513,962 - 1,719,445 - {11.95%)
Unrestricted (1,180,862) 1,230,863 1,906,283 1,708,677 (98.62%)
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 21,400,786 $ 4,231,301 $ 23,571,640 $ 4,732,728 {9.44%)

Changes in Net Position

The City’s total revenues, including business-type activities, were $6,832.426. A majority of the revenue
comes from various taxes, $3,856,498 (56%) Operating Grants accounted for another $978,380, (14%) and
combined charges for services totaled $1,385,978 (20%) of total revenues.

The total cost of all programs and services, including business-type activities, was $6,443,981. The City's
expenses are predominately related to General Government and Public Safety (49%). Water Services
accounted for 19% of total costs. The remaining expenses accounted for community and debt service

costs.



Table 2
Changes in Net Position

REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants
General Revenues:
Taxes
Rentat Income
Investment Income
Miscellaneous
Transfers In
Transfers Out
TOTAL REVENUES

PROGRAM EXPENSES
General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Community Development
Culture and Recreation
Interest on Lang-Term [ebt
Water Services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) iN NET
POSITION

Business- Business- Total
Governmental Type Governmental Type Percentage
Activities Activities Activities Activities Change

2015 2015 2014 2014 2015-2014

3 224,202 $ 1,161,776 5 964,580 $ 1,215,046 (36.41%)
978,380 - 1,581,619 - (38.14%)
3,856,498 3,361,028 - 14.74%
428,478 500,457 {14.38%}
5102 9,202 (44.56%}

177,990 - 230,662 {22.84%)
1,279,299 - 1,014,775 26.07%
(1,255,818) {23,481) {998,459) - 28.13%
5,694,131 1,138,205 6,663,864 1,215,046 {13.28%)
1,461,456 2,181,439 {33.00%)
1,690,299 1,774,045 (4.72%)
929,594 661,983 40.43%
366,064 - 605,735 (39.57%)
377,135 270,172 39.59%
375,723 - 423,489 - (11.28%)

- 1,243,710 - 1,184,733 4.98%

5,200,271 1,243,710 5,916,863 1,184,733 (9.26%)

$ 493,860 3 (105415) % 747 001 $ 30,313 (50.03%)

Governmental Activities

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $5,200,271.

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the City’s functions as well as each function’s net cost {tota! cost less
fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by
charges for services, operating grants and capital grants and contributions.

Table 3
Net Cost of Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2015 2014 2015 2014
General Government $ 1461456 $2181,439 $ 1498902 $ 1445314
Public Safety 1,690,299 1,774,045 1,569,526 1,648,855
Public Works 929,594 661,983 167,103 (681,156)
Community Development 366,064 805,735 33,847 284,208
Culture and Recreation 377,135 270,172 352,588 249,954
Interest on Long-Term Debt 375,723 423,489 375,723 423489
$ 5200,271 $5916,863 _§$ 3,997,689 $ 3370664

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The financial performance of the City as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the City
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $5,198,344, above last
year's ending fund balance of $4,745,501.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City revises its annual budget to reflect unexpected changes in revenues
and expenditures. The final amendment to the budget was approved June 17, 2014. A schedule of the
City's original and final budget amounts compared with actual revenues and expenses is provided in the
supplemental section of the audited financial report.



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2015, the City had a net investment of $25,258,425 in capital assets, comprised as shown in
Ttalgle 4. I}ﬂore detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial
statements.

Table 4
Capital Assets

Bustness- Business- Total

Governmental Type Governmental Type Percentage

Activities Activities Actlivities Activities Changi_

2015 2016 2014 2014 2015-2014
Non-Depreciated Assets $ 2,772,468 $ 432816 $ 2,764,592 $ 392,773 1.52%
Depreciated Assets 27,056,475 6,276,599 26,305,094 6,276,599 2.31%
Total Accumulated Depreciation {9.311,483) {1,968,450) (8,727,299} {1,861,693) 6.53%
NET CAPITAL POSITION $ 20,517,460 $ 4,740,965 $ 20,342,387 $ 4,807,679 0.43%

Long-Term Debt

At year-end, the City had $8,107,779 in combined debt, as shown in Table 5. More detailed information
about the City's debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table 5
Long-Term Debt
Business- Business- Total
Governmental Type Governmental Type Percentage
Activities Actlvities Activities Activities Change
2015 2015 2014 2014 2015-2014
Net Pension Liability $ 2504321 $ 355772 % -8 - NIA
Revenue Bonds 3,185,000 - 3,450,000 - (7.68%)
Cerlificates of Participation - 1,695,200 - 1,724,100 (1.68%)
Note Payable - 45,327 - 59,430 (23.73%)
Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan 100,650 - - - N/A
Compensated Absences 102,116 19,393 85,899 21,175 13.48%
TOTAL LONG-TERM DEBT $ 5,992,087 $ 2115692 % 3,63589% $ 1,804,705 51.81%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the City was aware of several
circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

a The continuing increases in premiums for health care insurance and worker's compensation could
have a significant effect on the future financial health of the City. Health care premiums are
predicted to continue to increase into the foreseeable future.

8 The budget assumptions used to prepare the budget for 2016 included a 2% cost of living
allowance {COLAY}, a growth factor of 3%, and salary step and column increase of 5%.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, participants, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, contact:

Kenneth McDonald
Finance Director

City of Fowler

128 South Fifth Street
Fowler, CA 93625



CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investment held by fiscal agent:
Restricted

Receivables:
Ceonsumer
Intergovernmental
Assessments
Community loans

Land held for resale

Deposits with others

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable

Depreciable - net of accumulated depreciation

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Qutflows of Rescurces - Pensions
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Consumer deposits
Noncurrent liabilities:

Net Pension Liability

Due in one year

Due in more than one year
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Special revenue
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 4888670 $ 1530567 § 6,417,237
476,337 - 476,337
227,020 165,137 382,157
- £6,662 66,662
1,135,618 - 1,135,618
478,436 - 478,436
153,794 - 153,794
6,369 - 6,369
2,772,468 432 816 3,205,284
17,744,992 4,308,149 22,053,141
27,881,704 6,493,331 34,375,035
361,028 49 320 410,348
361,028 49,320 410,348
59,124 23,085 82,209
175,114 - 175,114
44,743 - 44,743
- 94 586 04,586
2,604,321 355,772 2,960,093
292,256 43,176 335,432
3,095,510 1,716,744 4,812,254
6,271,068 2,233,363 8,504,431
570,878 77,987 648,865
570,878 77,987 548,865
17,332,460 3,000,438 20,332,898
2,321,275 - 2,321,275
1,413,951 - 1,413,951
1,513,962 - 1,513,962
{1,180,862) 1,230,863 50,001
$ 21400786 _$ 4,231,301 $ 25632,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF FOWLER

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FUNCTION/PROGRAMS
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Public works
Commuinity development
Culiure and recreation
Interast on long-term debt

Totat Governmental Activities

Business-type activities:
Water

Total Function/Programs

Program Revenues

Net (Expense} Revenues and

Changes in Net Position

Charges for Operating Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Senvices Grants Activities Activities Tofal
§ 1461456 § (37.446) % $ (1498902) § $ (1,498,902)
1,690,299 4472 116,301 {1,569,526) (1,569,526)
929,594 - 762,491 {167,103) - (167,103)
366,064 242,531 89,586 (33,847) {33,847)
377,135 14,545 10,002 {352,588) - (352,588}
375,723 - (375,723) (375,723}
5,200,271 224,202 978,380 {3,997,689) (3,997,689}
1,243,710 1,161,776 (81,934} (61,934)
$ 6443981 5 1385978 5§ 978380 (3,997,689) (81,934) (4,079,623)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property 964,412 964,412
Sales 1,363,470 - 1,363,470
Franchise 304,609 - 304,609
Utility 352,999 . 382,999
Other 363,790 - 363,79¢
Motar vehicle in-lieu taxes 477,218 - 477,218
Rental income 428,478 - 428,478
Investment income 5102 5,102
Miscellaneous 177,980 177,990
Transfers in 1,279,299 - 1,279,289
Transfers out (1,255,818) (23.481) (1,279,299)
Total General Revenues and Transfers 4,491,549 (23.481) 4,468,068
Changes in Net Position 493,860 (105,415) 388,445
Net Position, Beginning 23,571,640 4,732,726 28,304,366
Prior Period Adjustment (2,664,714) (396,010) (3,060,724)
Net Pasition, Ending $ 21400786 $ 4231301 § 25,532,087

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Fowler
Public
Firancing
Authority
Debt Other Total
Service Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,417,302 $ 476,337 $ 3,469,368 $ 5,363,007
Accounts receivable 116,886 - 110,134 227,020
Loans Receivable - 382,612 382,612
Due from other funds 71418 - 5.239 76,657
Advances fo other funds - - 1,113,873 1,113,873
Prepaid deposits - - 6,369 6,368
Property held for sale - - 153,794 153,794
TOTAL ASSETS 5 1,605,606 $ 476,337 $ 5,241,389 $ 7,323,332
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 57,295 $ - $ 1,829 $ 59,124
Accrued liabilities 175,114 - - 175,114
Deferred revenue 11,283 382,612 393,895
Bue to other funds - 71,418 71418
Advances from other funds 1,317,588 - 5733 1,323,321
Compensated absences 102,116 - - 102,116
Total Liabilities 1,663,396 - 461,592 2,124,988
Fund Balances:
Comnitied for:
Special revenue - - 795,015 795,015
Assigned for:
Special revenue - - 1,526,260 1,526,260
Debt service - 476,337 937,614 1,413,951
Cther purposes 1,520,908 1,520,908
Unassigned (57.790) (57,790)
Total Fund Balances (57,790) 476,337 4,779,797 5,198,344
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 1,605,606 b 476,337 $ 5,241,388 $ 7,323,332

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
10



CITY OF FOWLER

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources, and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period,
therefore, they were not reported in the governmental fund balance sheet.

Unmatured interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds.

Interagency receivables liquidated.

Recognition of the proportionate share of the net penion liability is not
reported in the funds.

Deferred Resources Inflows related to pension plans are not reported in the funds.

Deferred Resources Outflows related to pension plans are not reported in the funds.

Net position of governmental activities - statements of net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

1

$ 5,198,344

20,517,460

(3,285,650)

(44,743)

1,614,064

215,492

(2,604,321)

{570,878)

361,028

$ 21,400,786



CITY OF FOWLER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Fowler
Public
Financing
Authority
Debt Other Total
Service Governmental Govemmental
General Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,873,031 $ $ 686,838 3,559,869
Licenses and permits 245,024 - 245,024
Fines and penalties 4,854 - 4,854
Revenue from use of money and property 4,997 423,678 4,685 433,360
Charges for services 1,108 - - 1,108
Intergovernmental revenues 139,127 - 769,040 908,167
Miscellaneous 303,073 - 198,797 501,870
TOTAL REVENUES 3.571.214 423678 1,659,360 5,604,252
EXPENDITURES
General govemnment 1,099,663 - 1,099,663
Public safety 1,562,011 - 31,116 1,593,127
Public works 885,562 - 15,422 700,984
Community development 170,497 - 178,208 348,705
Parks and recreation 233878 - 116,677 350,553
Confractual services 28.404 28,404
Capital outiay 11670 600,529 612,199
Debt senvices:

Principal - 265,000 138,565 403,565

Interest - 158,205 166,444 314,649

Bend Fees 7,215 - - 7.215
TQTAL EXPENDITURES 3,770,494 423,205 1,265,365 5,459,064
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES {199,280) 473 393,995 195,168
OTHER FINANGING SCURCES (USES}

Operating Transfers In 468,484 810,815 1,279,299

Operating Transfers Out (527,987) {727 831) {1,255,818)

Qther Sources -

Other Uses - - - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

(USES) {59,503) - §2.984 23,481
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

QVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES {258,783) 473 476,979 218,669
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 (27,469} 475864 4297106 4,745 501
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT: 228,462 5,712 234,174
FUND BALANGES, JUNE 30 $ (57.790) $ 476,337 $ 4,779,797 $ 5,198,344

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 218,669

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized.
This is the amount of capital assets recorded. 605,092

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide

statement and changes in het assets, but it does not require the use of

current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported

as expenditures in governmental funds. {586,062)

Principal repayments for COBG loans considered as program income in fund
statement are not recognized in the statement of activities. 89,586

Repayment of long-term principal is an expenditure in governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the government-wide
statement of net position. 276,503

Additional accrued interest calculated on bonds and notes payable (44,743)

Proceeds of long-term debt is recognized as other financial resources in
in the funds but not revenue in the statement of activities {112,153)

Implementing GASB 68 required certain expenditures to be de-expended
and recorded as deferred resourced outflows. 361,028

Pension expense relating to GASB 68 is recorded in the SOA but not in the funds. (314,060)

Change in net position of governmental activities - statement of activities 3 493,860

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Consumer receivables
Advances to other funds

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets;
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable
Depreciable - net of accumulated depreciation
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension
Total Deferred Qutflows of Resources

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits
Current portion of certificates of participation
Current portion of note payable
Compensated absences

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Certificates of partiticpation
Water note payable
Net Pension Liability

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITICN

Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water
Fund

$ 1,530,567
155,137
66,662

1,752,366

432,816

4,308,149

4,740,965

8,493,331

49,319

48,319

23,085
94,586
30,100
13,076
19,393

180,240

1,665,100
32,251

355,772

2,053,123

2,233,363

77,986

77,986

3,000,438
1,230,863

$ 4,231,301



CITY OF FOWLER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUE
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel costs
Materials and supplies
Contract services
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Rent and leases
Cther
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income
Interest expense
TOTAL NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
TRANSFERS OUT

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
NET POSITION, ENDING

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Water
Fund

$ 1,159,653

580,395
19,176
149,274
148,532
116,412

7,746

27,735

_ 108755
1,156,025

3,628
2,119
(87.681)
(85,562)
(81,934)
_ (23.481)
(105,415)

4,732,726

{396,010)
$ 4,231,301



CITY OF FOWLER
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITES

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds
NET CASH USED BY NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIMITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on long-term debt
interest paid on long-term debt
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets

NET CASH USED BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
interest received

DECREASE IN CASH AND TEMPORARY CASH INVESTMENTS

CASH AND CASH INVESTMENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

Water
Fund

1,151,207
(507,667)
(582,177)

61,363

(23,481)

(23,481)

{43,003)
(87,681)
(40,039)

(170,723)

2119

(130,722)

1,661,289

$

1,630,567

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease in consumer receivables
Decrease in accounts payable
lncrease in consumer deposits
Increase in other liabilities
Increase in Net Pension Liability Components

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

3,628

106,755

(31,190)
(27,219)
22,744
(1,782)
(11,573)

61,363




CITY OF FOWLER

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Redevelopment
Successor Agency
Private Purpose
Trust Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 50,568
Due from other agencies 68,982
Advance to other funds 142,786
Total Assets 262,336
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 115
Compensated absences payable 1,350
Due to other funds 5,239
Total Current Liabilities 6,704
NET POSITION
Restricted 255,632
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 255,632

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FOWLER

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

ADDITIONS
Tax revenue
Transfer of assets from outside agencies

DEDUCTIONS
Persannel costs
Professional services
Debt Service:

Interest
Total Deductions

Changes in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning

Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position, Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Redevelopment
Successor Agency
Private Purpose
Trust Fund

$ 127,050
220

127,270

108,209
16,771

91,900

216,880

(89,610)

616,717
(271,475)

$ 255,632




CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(1)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. General Statement

The City of Fowler, California was incorporated June 15, 1908. The City is a general law city and
as such draws its authority from the Constitution and laws of the State of California. The City has
a council/manager form of government and is governed by a five member elected councii. The
City Manager is appointed by the City Council. The City provides the following services: police
and fire protection, street construction and maintenance, public improvements, planning and
zoning, recreation, and general administrative services. The City also operates the water utility
enterprise.

The accounting policies of the City relating to the funds included in the accompanying basic
financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted principles for lacal
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board {GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public accountants in the publication entitled
Audits of State and Local Governmental Units.

. Reporting Entity

The City’s financial reporting entity comprises the following:
Primary Government: City of Fowler
Blended Component Units: Fowler Public Financing Authority

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, and includes ail component units of which the
City appointed a voting majority of the units’ board; the City is either able to impose its will on the
unit or a financial benefit or burden relationship exists.

Blended Component Units

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria
described above and whose governing body is the same of substantially the same as the City
Council or the component unit provides services entirely to the City. These component units’
funds are blended into those of the City's by appropriate activity type to compose the primary
government presentation.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit
criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending. Currently, the City has no
discretely presented component units.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

C.

Component
Unit Brief Description/inclusion Criteria Reporting
Fowler Public The Fowler Public Financing Authority is & joint  Debt Service Fund

Financing Authority exercise of powers agency duly organized and

existing under the laws of the State of
California. The Authority's specific and
primary purpose is to provide financial
assistance to the City of Fowler by acquiring
gualified obligations from the City which were
issued for the acquisition, construction, and
improvement of public facilities and property.
The current City Council serves as entire
governing body (Trustees). Any issuance of
debt would require a two-thirds approval of the
City Council.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

1.

Change in Accounting Principle

Effective July 1, 2014, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 88, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions” and GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension Transition for Contributions
Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date”. These Statements require nUMeraus new
pension disclosures in the notes to the financial statements and two new 10-year schedules
as required supplementary information. Also, for the first time the City is required to
recognize pension expense, report deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and a net pension liability for its proportionate shares of the
collective pension expense, collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and collective net pension liability. The reporting of these
new amounts on the government-wide financial statements, along with the effect of the
restatement of the beginning net position will also affect the City’s government-wide net
position. As a result of implementation of these Statements, beginning net position has
been restated as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities

Net position previously reported, July 1, 2014 $ 23,571,640 $ 4732726

Net pension liability (3,103,533) {423,966)
Deferred outflows of resources for contributions

made subsequent to the measurement date 204,645 27,956

Total restatement {2,898,888) (396,010)

Net position as restated _$ 20672752 $ 4336716
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2.

New Accounting Pronotncements
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 69

Effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2013 the City adopted GASB Statermnent
No. 69, “Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations”. This
statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government
combinations and disposals of government operations. This statement requires disclosure
to be made about government combinations and disposals of government operations to
enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those
transactions. The requirements of the statement were considered, but did not have an
impact on the City’s financiat statements for the current fiscal year.

Basis of Presentation

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. The effect of interfund activity,
within the governmental and business-type activities columns, has been removed from these
statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific program. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided
by a given program and 2) operating or capital grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Taxes and other
iterns not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or
activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Separate statements are presented for governmental and proprietary activities.
These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial
statements: all non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column.

Governmental funds are those funds through which most governmental functions typically are
financed. The measurement focus of governmental funds in on the sources, uses and
balance of current financial resources.

The City has presented the following major governmental funds:

General Eund. This fund is the main operating fund of the City. This fund is used to account
for all financial resources not accounted for in other funds, All general tax revenues and
other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual agreement to some other fund are
accounted for in this fund. General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund.

1994-1 Assessment City Debt Service Fund. This fund is used as a conduit for the
repayment of debt acquired to improve an assessment District in the City.

Fowler Public Financing Authority (PFA) Debt Service Fund. This fund accounts for PFA
debt.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The City reports the following non-major governmental funds:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. The following special revenue
funds are utilized by the City:

The Utility Users Fund is used to account separately for local revenues used to assist with
funding of essential municipal services.

The Traffic Safety Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for roadway
safety improvements.

The Gas Tax Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for street and
road purposes.

The Traffic Congestion Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for
street and highway safety improvements.

The LTF Article 3 Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for local
pedestrian and bicycle path projects.

LTF Article 8 Fund is used to account separately for state revenues used for local streets
and roads projects.

The Measure C Fund is used to account separately for County revenues used for roads
and transportation projects in Fresno County.

The Proposition 1B Fund is used to account separately for state revenues to fund mobility,
safety, and air quality improvements.

The Community Development Block Grant Fund is used to account separately for state
revenues to assist in development activities.

The Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund is used to account separately for housing
assets.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general-long term debt principal, interest, and related costs. The following debt
service funds are maintained by the City:

Debt Service 88-1 Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

Assessment City No. 93-1 Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

Hospital Improvement Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

Merced Street Fund is used to account for the accumulation of rescurces for, and the
repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

Public Improvement Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and
the repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.

Assessment City No. 94-1 Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the repayment of, City bonds, interest and related costs.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and/or construction of all major
governmental general fixed assets. The City maintains the following capital projects funds:

« Groundwater Fund is used to account for fees paid to the Consolidated Irrigation District
(District) to be placed into a groundwater management and replenishment fund for
purposes of implementing groundwater replenishment methodologies to benefit the City
and District.

s General Services Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment,
construction and maintenance of general City assets.

« Law Enforcement Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for the purchase of
vehicles and equipiment.

» Fire Department Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for the purchase of
vehicles and eguipment.

o Streets Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for construction and
maintenance of streets and roads.

« Parks Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment, construction
and maintenance of park facilities.

« Water Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for equipment, construction
and maintenance of public works facilities.

e Sewer Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for infrastructure construction
and improvement.

» Storm Drain Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for construction and
maintenance of City infrastructure.

o Highway 99/Merced Street Fund is used to account for developer fees provided for street
and highway maintenance and construction.

In addition, the City reports the foliowing fund type:
Proprietary Fund

Water Fund:  This fund accounts for financial activity of the water utility system. Proprietary
funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.
Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include the costs of personal and contractual
services, supplies and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not

meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements. However, hecause
their assets are held in a trustee or agent and are, therefore, not avaitable to support City
programs, these finds are not included in the government-wide financial statements. The
Private Purpose Trust Fund is used to account for the Assets of the former City of Fowler
Redevelopment Agency during the wind down period.

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when
revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of
the measurement focus applied.

The government-wide statements and fund financial statements for proprietary funds are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The
economic resources measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or
non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the operating statements present
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, including unbilled water services which are
accrued. Expenses are recognized at the time the liability is incurred.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual;
i.e., when they become both measurable and available. “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or scon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers property
taxes as available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. A one-year availability
period is used for recognition of all other Governmental Fund revenues., Expenditures aré
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, except
for interest payable accrued at the debt issuance date for which cash is received with the debt
proceeds, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and arbitrage are recorded
only when payment has matured and will be payable shortly after year-end.

The revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, charges for
service, interest income and intergovernmental revenues. Sales taxes collected and held by the
State at year-end on behalf of the government are also recognized as revenue. All other
governmental fund revenues are recognized when received, as they are deemed immaterial.

Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Paosition of Individual Funds

Following are funds that have deficit fund balances or fund net position at year end, if any, along
with remarks which address such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
General Fund $ 57,790 Deficit fund balances for General Fund will be

reduced using property tax revenues and franchise
fee revenue associated with solid waste collection
agreement.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements.

1. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
all Governmental Fund types and Proprietary Fund types. These budgets are adopted on a
basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

2. The City Council approves the line item budget appropriations and also approves all additions
or transfers of budgeted amounts.

4, Unused appropriations for all of the above annually budgeted funds lapse at the end of the
year.

4. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts
revised during the year.

F. Cash and Investments

Under the City's cash management program, cash in excess of operating requirements from all
funds is pooled with the purpose of maximizing interest through investment activities, and is
deposited in savings accounts or invested in bank certificates of depasit, bank mecney market
accounts and the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (L.ALLF.}. Interestincome on
pooled investments is allocated on the end of month baiance in each fund included in the pools.
Information regarding the amount of doliars invested in derivatives, if any, with L.ALF. was not
available.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

G. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considered all highly liquid investments with
a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. All cash and
investments of the proprietary funds are pooled with the City’s pooled cash and investments.

H. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that represent lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year is referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund
loans) or “interfund advances receivable/payable” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available
for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

Proprietary fund receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncoliectible accounts. All
customers are billed monthly. The estimated value of services pravided, but unbilled at year-end
has been included in the accompanying financial statements.

Property taxes are assessed, collected, and allocated by Fresno County throughout the fiscal year
according to the following property tax calendar:

Lien Date January 13

Levy Date July 15t to June 301

Due Dates November 18, 1%t installment, February 1%, 2" installment
Delinquent Dates December 10, 15t installment, April 10th, 2nd installment

.  Loans Receivable

For the purpose of the Fund Financial Statements, Special Revenue Fund expenditures relating to
long-term loans arising from loan subsidy programs are recorded as loans receivable with an

offset to a deferred revenue account.

J. Inventory

Inventory items are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase. Records are not
maintained of inventory and supplies on hand.

K. Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets’ lives are not capitalized. A capitalization threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated

useful lives:
Estimated
Asset Class Useful Lives
Buildings 10 - 50 Years
Improvements 5-10 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-25 Years
Infrastructure 20 - 40 Years
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

[n June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34
which requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments' basic financial
statements. In accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all
infrastructure into the 2014-15 basic financial statements.

The City defines infrastructure as capital assets that are stationary and have expected useful lives
significantly in excess of most capital assets. The assets include the street system, water
purification and distribution system, sewer collection and treatment system, park and recreation
improvement, storm water conveyance system, and buildings combined with the site amenities
such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its business.

L. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned or unused
vacation leave. Vacation is accumulated at 6-2/3 hours per month for full-time regular employees
with less than 5 years service to a maximum of 13-1/3 hours per month for full-time regular
employees with over 10 years of service. Maximum vacation leave accumulated may not exceed
320 hours at any one time. Vacation leave may be taken as determined by the employee's
Department Head, City Manager, or Council (in case of Department Heads) with due consideration
for the employee’s wishes and needs of the service provided.

Accumulated unpaid vacation pay is accrued for the Proprietary Funds when incurred. AtJune 30,
2015 the amount of accrued vacation pay was $19,393 for the Enterprise Funds.

M. Long-Term Liabilities

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
bond discounts and amortized over the term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts,
as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources while discounts not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported
as debt service expenditures. Discounts withheld from the debt proceeds are reported as other
financing uses.

N. Balances

Fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy hased
primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific
purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Governmental fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned or
unassigned. Following are descriptions of fund classifications used by the City:

Restricted fund balance includes amounts that have constraints placed upon the use of the
resources either by an external party or imposed by law through a constitutional provision or
enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes pursuant

to constraints imposed by a formal action of the Board, the City's highest level of decision-making
authority. This formal action is the majority vote of the City’s Governing Board.
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CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Assigned fund balance includes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a
specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. For governmental funds, other than the
general fund, this is the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed.
Assignments of fund balance are created by the City Manager and Finance Director pursuant to
authorization established by Board Policy.

Unassigned fund bafance is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund. The general fund should be
the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental
funds, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance.

When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
{committed, assigned, or unassigned) rescurces are available, it is the City's general policy to use
restricted resources first. When expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which
unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are available, and amount in any of
these unrestricted classifications could be used, it is the City’s general policy to spend committed
resources first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts.

0. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis
as they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments
{including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. CalPERS audited
financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under
Forms and Publications.

(GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to fiability and asset information within
certain defined time frames. For this report, the following time frames are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2013
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2014
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014

P. Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt ~ This amount consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt that attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position — This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position — This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition of
“invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or "restricted net position.”

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net position first.

Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

27



CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

(2) Cash and Investments

The investment policy of the City is consistent with guidelines set forth under State of California
Government Code Section 53602 and serves to maximize investment income consistent with safe and
prudent investment practices. All surplus funds are managed by the Finance Director in compliance
with the Statement of Investment Policy adopted by the City Council which delegates to the Finance
Director the authority to invest city funds and to deposit securities.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds. Interest income earned on
pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly to the various funds based on the month-end cash
and invesiment balances.

(a) Collateral for Deposits

The City of Fowler maintains a cash investment pool that is available for all funds. Each fund type
balance in the pool is reflected on the statement of net position as cash and cash equivalents. The
carrying amount of the City’s cash deposits was $5,718,439 at June 30, 2015. The general bank
balance at June 30, 2015 was $5,862,444 which was either insured or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institutions in the City's name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to
secure the City's cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that
collateral pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a security interest in such
collateral superior to those of a general creditor.  Thus, collateral for cash deposits is considered to
be held in the City’s name. The market value of the pledged securities must equal at least 110% of
a city's deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of a city’s total deposits.

(b) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

The City participates in an external investment pool, as defined by GASB Statement No. 31, by way
of its funds on deposit in the LAIF managed by the State of California. These funds are pooled
with those of other agencies in the State and invested in accordance with state guidelines.
Substantially ali information required for the GASB Statement No. 31 disclosure was unavailable at
the time these financial statements were prepared. The balance of $748 668 approximates the fair
value. Investment gains and losses are shared proportionately by all members of LAIF and paid
quarterly to each member. Investment in LAIF is not subject to risk categorization.

(¢} Authorized Investments

The balance of $476,337 includes the bond issue proceeds trust accounts which consist of
proceeds from bonds which are unspent or reserved. These funds are required to be held by
outside fiscal agents under the provisions of the bond agreements. The California Government
Code provides these monies in the absence of specific statutory provision governing the issuance
of the certificates, may be invested in accordance with ordinance, resolutions, or indentures
specifying the types of investments the fiscal agent may make. These investments are generally
more restrictive than the City's investment policy, and at no time have additional investrnents not
permitted by the City's investment policy been authorized.

Under provisions of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of the
California Government Code, the City may invest in the following types of investments:

Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies Local agency investment fund deposits (state
pool}

Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed with Passbook savings account demand deposits
commercial banks and/or savings & loan companies Small business administration loans

Negotiable certificates of deposit Repurchase agreements
Bankers' acceptances Reverse repurchase agreements
Commercial paper
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(d)

All pf the City's investment activities are within state statutes and the City's investment policy.
During the year ended June 30, 2015, the City did not utilize investment types different from those
?ategorlzed below. A summary of investment securities by category as of June 30, 2015 is as
ollows:

Fair Value
State treasurer investment pool (LAIF) $748,668

The fair value of investments held in the City Treasury grouped by maturity at June 30 2015, is as
shows below:

Maturity
Current to one year $748,668
Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations
As of June 30, 2015, expenditures exceeded appropriations in individual funds as follows:
Excess
Appropriations Category Expenditures
General Fund:
General Government $ 55,958
Public Works 285,240
Parks & Recreation 16,651

The City incurred unanticipated expenditures during the year in the above departments.

Cash and Investments

The summary of pooled cash and investments at June 30, 2015 is as follows:
Statement of Net Assets:

Governmental Activities:

Cash on hand $ 700
Primary government deposits 5,667,869
Local agency investment fund 748,688
Cash with a fiscal agent/trustee 476,337
Fiduciary Funds:

Deposits with financiat institutions 50,568
$ 6044 142

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2015 consist of the following:
Cash and cash eguivalents $ 6,467,805
Cash with a fiscal agent/trustee 476,337

$6044.140

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its

fair value to changes in market interest rates.

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally

recognized statistical rating organization.
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(h) Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The City invests solely in
the Local Agency lnvestment Fund. All other assets are cash equivalents held in financial
institution savings or checking accounts.

(i) Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government
Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provisions for deposits:
The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state
or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law {unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount
deposited by the public agencies.

None of the City’s deposits that were in excess of federal depository insurance limits with financial
institutions were held in uncoliateralized accounts.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
(e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that
would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to investments,
custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities.
Custodial credit risk does not apply fo a local government's indirect investment in securities through
the use of mutual funds or government investment pools.

(3} Interfund Transactions

(a) Current Interfund Balances

Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid
shortly after the end of the fiscal years.
Due From Due To
Other Funds _ Other Funds

Major Funds:

General Fund $ 71418 % -
Non-Major Governmental Funds 5,239 71,418
Fiduciary Fund - 5,239
Total 3 76657 _% 76,657

(b) Long-Term interfund Advances

At June 30, 2015, the funds below have made advances that were not expected to be repaid in one

year or less.
Advances o Advances From
QOther Funds Other Funds
Major Funds:

General Fund $ -3 1,317,588
Non-Major Governmental Funds 1,113,873 5,733
Proprietary Fund 66,662 -
Fiduciary Funds 142,786 -
Total $ 1323321 _$ 1323321
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(4) Capital Assets

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City has reported all capital assets including
infrastructure additions as of the beginning of the fiscal year in the government-wide statement of net
position. The City elected to use the basic approach whereby accumulated depreciation and

depreciation expense have been recorded. The following table

capital assets:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructures
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructures
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in prograss
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructures
Total capital assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructures
Total accumulated depreciation
Totai capitai assets being depreciated, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net
Total capital assets

presents summary information on

Beginning Ending

Balances Increases Decreases Balances
1,189,198 3 - $ - 3 1,189,198
1,575,394 716,238 708,362 1,683,270
2,764,592 716,238 708,362 2,772,468
1,688,263 - - 1,688,263
2,404,044 45187 - 2,449,231
22,212,787 708,362 2,168 22,918,981
26,305,094 753,549 2,168 27,056,475
1,175,091 85,873 - 1,261,064
2,710,559 265,263 - 2,975,822
4,841,649 234,826 1,878 5,074,597
8,727,299 586,062 1,878 9,311,483
17,577,795 167,487 290 17,744,992
20,342,387 883,725 708,652 20,517,460
191,046 - - 191,046
201,727 40,043 - 241,770
392,773 40,043 - 432,816
12,186 - - 12,186
187,018 - - 187,018
6,077,395 - - 6,077,395
6,276,599 - - 8,276,599
2,029 487 - 2,516
102,796 23,075 - 125,871
1,756,868 83,194 - 1,840,063
1,861,694 106,756 - 1,968,450
4,414,905 (106,756) - 4,308,149
4,807,678 (66,713) - 4,740,965
25,150,085 $ 817,012 $ 708,652 $ 25,258,425

For the year ended June 30, 2015, depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the

governmental functions as follows:

General government
Public safety

Public works

Community development
Parks and recreation
Total
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5. Loan Receivables

As part of the City’s development plan, the City of Fowler applied for and received Community
Development Block Grants from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. These
grants will be used to provide loan funding for small businesses in the City of Fowler. The purposeisto
develop growth and create jobs in the community of Fowler. The loans are made at reasonable rates.

2% loan to Dale Brisco, Inc. due in monthly installments of $673

including principal and interest. $ 21,987
2% loan to Dale Brisco, Inc. due in monthly installments of $644

including principal and interest. 31,355
2% loan to Fratellos, Inc. due in monthly installments of $1,192

including principal and interest. 11,428 *
2% loan to La Quinta due in monthly installments of $2,583

including principal and interest. 300,126 *
No interest loan to Nouveau Hair Salon due in monthly installments

of $179 6,679 *
No interest loan to Little Bit of This & A Little Bit of That due in monthly

instaliments of $83 2,982
No interest loan to Espana & Associates due in monthly installments

of $1,141 4879 *
Total Loans Receivable $ 478,436

* Loans in arrears as of June 30, 2015.

6. Amount fo be Provided by Special Assessments

The City established the following assessment districts in order to fund improvements within the City of
Fowler. The property owners within the districts are responsible for the following at June 30, 20185:

Assessment City 1993-1 $ 153,397
Assessment City 1994-1 982,221
$1,135618

Future commitments to the City follow:

Year Ended
June 30

2016 $ 176,083
2017 177,095
2018 179,475
2019 178,998
2020-2024 179,888

2025 — 699,131
1,590,670

Interest __ (455052)

Total _$1.135618
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7.

Long-Term Obligations
(a) Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilites. Changes in long-term
obligations for the period ended June 30, 2015, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental activities:
Revenue bonds $ 3450000 $ - $ 265000 § 3,185000 § 275,000
Compensated absences 85,899 16,217 - 102,116 -
Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan - 112,153 11,503 100,650 17,256
3,535,899 128,370 276,503 3,387,766 292,256
Business-type activities:
State of California:
Certificates of participation 1,724,100 - 28,900 1,695,200 30,100
Department of Water
Resources note 59,430 - 14,103 45,327 13,076
Compensated absences 21,175 - 1,782 19,393 -
1,804,705 - 44,785 1,759,920 43,176

Trust Activities:
Successor Agency 1,261 90 - 1,351

$ 5341865 $ 128460 § 321,288 § 5149037 _$ 335432

(b) Revenue Bonds

The Fowler Public Financing Authority issued Refunding Revenue Bonds in the amount of
$4,435,000 in August 2012. The proceeds from the bonds were used to refund the $4,190,000
principal amount outstanding on the 1993 and 1994 Revenue Bonds and pay the costs of issuance
of the bonds. The Bonds mature through September 2023 with interest ranging from 2% to 5.10%
payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15.

The outstanding revenue bonds of the City of Fowler at June 30, 2015 are as follows:

Issued Redeemed
Date of Interest Maturity Original Qutstanding Current Current Qutstanding
Issue Rate% Date Issue July 1, 2014 Year Year June 30, 2015
2010 2.00-5.10 2023 $ 4435000 $ 3,450,000 - 265,000 3,185,000

The annua! requirements to amortize revenue bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2015, are as

follows:
Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 275,000 $ 145725 $ 420,725
2017 290,000 134,569 424 569
2018 290,000 121,881 411,881
2019 310,000 108,563 418,563
2020 315,000 94,106 409,106
2021-2025 1,705,000 200,648 1,905,648
Total $ 3.185.000 $ 805492 _$ 3900497
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(c)

(d)

State of California Department of Water Resources Note

The State of California Department of Water Resources note is due in annual installments hased
upon a changing percentage of the original principal amount. The interest for the first five years of
the note was deferred and is being paid in equal annual installments over the remaining life of the
hote.

me annual requirements to amortize the long-term notes outstanding as of June 30, 2015 are as
OlIOWS!

Year Enced Deferred
June 30 Principal interest Interest Total
20186 13,402 571 1,020 14,993
2017 13,728 773 1,020 15,521
2018 14,117 404 1,020 15,541
2019 - - 1,020 1,020
Total $ 41247 * _$ 1748 _$ 4080 * _$ 47,075

*The sum of these items equals outstanding debt of $45,327.

Certificates of Participation

On September 2, 2004, the City was awarded a loan from the United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development Division, for a total of $1,835,000. The purpose of the loan is for
water system improvements. As of June 30, 2015, the City has drawn $1,935,000 at a stated
interest rate of not more than 4.375% per annum. Principal payments will be due on September
15 of each year. Interest is due semi-annually on March 15 and September 15 of each year.

The annua! requirements to amortize certificates of participation outstanding as of June 30, 2015,
are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 30100 § 74165 $ 104,265
2017 31,400 72,848 104,248
2018 32,800 71,474 104,274
2019 34,300 70,039 104,339
2020 35,800 68,539 104,339
2021-2025 203,600 317,813 521,413
2026-2030 252,300 269,203 521,503
2031-2035 312,600 208,950 521,550
2036-2040 387,100 134,339 521,439
2041-2045 375,200 41,913 417,113
Total $ 1695200 _$.1.329283 $ 3.024483

Energy Efficiency Retrofit Loan

In October 2014, the City received a loan of $112,153 from Pacific Gas & Electric to complete
energy conservation measures related to street lighting. The loan call for monthly payments of
$1,438 until April 2021 and bears no interest. Future payments are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30
2016 $ 17,256
2017 17,256
2018 17,256
2019 17,256
2020 17,256
2021-2025 14,370
Total _$100.650
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8. Classification of Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements, net position are classified in the following categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of refated debt - this category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding
balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these
assets reduce this category.

Restricted net position - This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through
constitutional provisions of enabling legislation. Additionally, this category presents restrictions
placed on the categories of capital projects, and specific projects and programs as established by
the City Council.

Unrestricted net position - This category represents the remaining net position of the City, which are
not restricted for any project or other purposes.

Fowler Public
Financing

Authority Other
Debt Service Governmental

Fund Funds
Assigned for Debt Service $ 476,337 3 -
Assigned for Street and Roads - 16,954
Assigned for Street and Highway Safety - 60,071
Assigned for Local Pedestrian and Bicycle Paths - 23,791
Assigned for Local Streets and Roads Projects 304,268
Assigned for Roads and Transportation Projects - 559,104
Assigned for Development Activities - 499,621
Assigned for Low and Moderate Income Housing - 62,451
Assigned for Groundwater Monitoring - 6,946
Assigned for Debt Service - 937,614
Assigned for Capital Improvements - 1,513,962
Total $ 476,337 $ 3,984,782
Commited for Municipal Services $ - $ 795015
$ - $ 795015

M. Pension Plans
1. Generai Information About the Pension Plans
a. Plan Descriptions

Qualified employees are eligible to participate in the City's Safety (police) and Miscellaneous
(all other) Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and Local Government
resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and memberships information that
can be found on the CalPERS website.
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b. Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to
one year of full-time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire
at age 62 for normal benefits or at age 55 with statutorily reduced benefits. Employees hired
prior to January 1, 2013 are eligible to retire at age 60 for normal benefits or at age 55 with
statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10
years of service. All members are eligible for death benefits after one year of total service.

The Plans’ provisions and benefits for the measurement period ending June 30, 2014 are
summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2.7% at55 2% at 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments manthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.0% to 2.70% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00% 6.25%
Required employer contribution rates 25.275% 6.25%

Safety - Police

Prior to On or after
Hire Date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 3% at 85 2.7% at 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.4% to 3.0% 2.0% t0 2.70%
Required employee contribution rates 9.00% 11.50%
Required employer contribution rates 27.46% 11.50%

c. Contributions

Section 20814(c} of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the
actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The
CalPERS Board retains the authority to amend contribution rates. The total plan contributions
are determined through CalPERS' annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially
determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
The employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate

and the contribution rate of employees.

2 Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2015, the City reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the net
pension liability of each plan as follows:

Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability

Miscellanecus $ 1,772,373
Safety 1,187,720
Total Net Pension Liability 3 2,960,093

36



CITY OF FOWLER
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

The City's net pension liability for each Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the
total pension liability for each Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by the
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 roiled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard update
procedures. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected contributions of
all participating employers, actuarially determined. Although a valid comparison of the City’s
proportion at June 30, 2014 to its proportion at June 30, 2013 is not available in the first year of
implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, that disclosure will be available in subseguent years.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the City recognized pension expense of $314,060. At June 30,
2015, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurementdate $ 410,348 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience - -
Change in assumptions - -
Change in employer's proportion and differences between
the employer's contributions and the employer's
proportionate share of contributions - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments - 580,109
Adjustment due to Differences in Proportions - 68,756
Total $ 410,348 $ 648,865

$410,348 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2016. The other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
June 30
2016 $ 169,583
2017 169,583
2018 164.671
2019 ___ 145008
Total $ 648,865
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a. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations were determined using the
following actuarial assumptions:

Miscellanecus Safety
Valuation Date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Measurement Date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age - Normal Cost Entry Age - Normal Cost
Method Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.5% 7.5%
Inflation 2.75% 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.00% 3.00%
Projected Salary Increase 3.3-14.2% {1) 3.3-14.2% {1
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% {2) 7.5% (2)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS  {3)  Derived using CalPERS  (3)

membership data for all Funds  membership data for all Funds

(1) Depending on age, service and type of employment

(2) Net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation

(3) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table
includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2013 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates
to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report ¢an be
obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

b. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50 percent. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested
plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the
use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount
rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress
test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can
be obtained at CalPERS' website under the GASB 68 section.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined
without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative
expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a
slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. This difference was deemed
immaterial to the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan.
However, employers may determine the impact at the plan level for their own financial reporting
purposes. Refer to page 9 of this report, which provides information on the sensitivity of the net
pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any
changes to the discount rate will require board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For
these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative
expenses for GASB 67 and GASB 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year.
CalPERS will continue to check the materiality of the difference in calculation until such time as
they changed their methodology.
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Th_e !ong—term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and fong-term (11-60 years) using a
building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and
long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of
return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return and arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and
long-term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent
rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount
rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

CalPERS

Strategic Real Return Real Return
Asset Class Allocation (Years 1-10)(1) (Years 11+)(2)
Global Equity 47.00% 5.26% 5.71%
Global Fixed Income 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
infiation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

100.00%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
(2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period

¢. Sensitivity to Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for each Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for each Plan, as welt as what the City’s proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous Safety
1% Decrease 6.50% 6.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 2,653,264 $ 1,824,527
Current Discount Rate 7.50% 7.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,772,373 $ 1,187,720
1% Increase 8.50% 8.50%
Net Pension Liability $ 1,041,316 $ 663018
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11.

12.

13,

d. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Risk Management

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which
establishes the Employment Risk Management Authority (ERMA).  The relationship between the City
and ERMA is such that ERMA is not a compenent unit of the City for financial reporting purposes.

The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $350,000 of each
worker's compensation claim through the ERMA. The City has the right to receive dividends or the
obligation to pay assessments based on a formula which, among other expenses, charges the City's
account for liability losses under $25,000 and worker's compensation losses under $10,000. The
ERMA participates in an excess pool which provides general liability coverage from $1,000,000 to
$10,000,000 and purchases excess reinsurance from $10,000,000 to $15,000,000. The ERMA
participates in an excess pool which provides worker's compensation coverage from $350,000 to
$500,000 and purchases excess reinsurance above $500,000 to the statutory limit.

The ERMA is a consortium of one hundred sixty (160) public entities in California. It was established
under the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. The ERMA is governed by
a Board of Directors, which meets three times per year, consisting of one representative appointed by
each member. The day-to-day business is handled by a management group employed by the ERMA.
The financial position and results of operations for the ERMA as of June 30, 2015 are presented below:

Total Assets $25 483,295
Total Liabilities 9,001,165
Members' Equity $16,482 130
Total Revenues for Year $ 5,873,537
Total Expenses for Year 7,896,544
Excess of Income Over (Under) Expenses $ (2,023,007

At the termination of the joint powers agreement and after all claims have been seltled, any excess or
deficit will be divided among the cities in accordance with its governing documents.

At June 30, 2015 the City reported $113,238 in deposits in the General Fund related to the general
liability and warkers' compensation programs.

Contingent Liabilities

Litigation
The City is involved in various litigation actions. In the opinion of management and legal counsel, the
disposition of all litigation pending will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

State and Federal Allowances, Awards and Grants

The City participates in various federal and state financial assistance programs. These programs are
subject to program compliance audits by the grantors, which may be covered by the Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1997 and OMB Circular A-133. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such
amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The City does not provide administrative nor investment advice forthe Plan. Therefore, the City is not
required to report the Plan assets and has excluded them from their financial statements.
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14, Prior Period Adjustments

A prior period adjustment of $210,000 was made to the General Fund and Redevelopment Successor
Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund to correct the classification of tax increment apportionment
revenue recorded in the 2013/14 fiscal year. A prior period adjustment of $61,475 was made to the
Redevelopment Successor Agency Private Purpose Trust Fund to remove a duplicate accrual related
to a home improvement grant loan. A prior period adjustment of $5712 was made to the
Low/Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund to correct negative cash balance in the 2013/14 fiscal
year. A prior period adjustment of $18,462 was made to the General Fund to adjust cash balance.

Summary Schedule:

Redevelopment
Successor Agency
Governmental Business-Type Private Purpose
Activities Activities Trust Fund
Net Pension Liability $ (2,898,888) 3 {(396,010) 3 -
Tax Increment Apportionment 210,000 - 210,000
General Fund Cash Adjustment 18,462 - -
Low and Moderate Income
Housing Fund Negative Cash 5712 - -
Duplicate housing loan accrual - - 61,475
$ (2,664,714) $ {396,010) $ 271,475
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CITY OF FOWLER

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

REVENUES
Taxes

License and permits
Fines and penalties
Revenue from use of money and property
Charges for services
Intergovernmental
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current services:
General government

Public safety
Public works

Community development
Parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Debt Service:
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources {Uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Other financing uses
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess {Deficiency) Over Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Fund Balance, Beginning

Pricr Period Adjustments

Fund Balance, Ending
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Variance With
Final Budget
Positive

Final Actual {Negative)
$ 2,300,000 $2,873,031 $ 573,031
144,200 245,024 100,824
7,000 4,854 (2,148)
6,000 4,997 (1,003)
168,000 1,108 (166,892)
105,000 139,127 34,127
270,500 303,073 32,573
3,000,700 3,671,214 570,514
1,043,704 1,099,663 {55,959)
1,744,905 1,662,011 182,894
400,322 685,562 (285,240)
200,835 170,497 30,338
217,225 233,876 (16,651)
17,000 11,670 5,330
3,623,991 3,763,279 {139,288)
{623,291) (192,085) 431,228
121,174 468,484 347,310
- {527,987} {527,987)
- (7,215) (7,215)
121,174 (66,718) (187,892)
{502,117) (258,783) 243,334
(27,469) (27,469) -
228,462 228,462 -
$ (301,124) § (57790) § 243,334




CITY OF FOWLER

SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Proportion of the net pension liablitiy
Proportionate share of the net pension liability
Covered-employee payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability
as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position

Pian fiduciary net position as percentage of
total pension liability
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Fiscal Year
2015
Miscellaneous Safety
Plan Plan
0.02848% 0.01809%

$ 1,772,373 $ 1,187,720

$ 889779 $ 688,280

203.77% 172.56%

$ 4,867,709 $ 3,566,435

73.31% 75.02%



CITY OF FOWLER

SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’'S CONTRIBUTIONS
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

Fiscat Year
2015
Miscellaneous Safety
Plan Plan

Actuarially required contribution $ 193896 $ 188,701
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contribution (193,896) {188,701)
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - 3 -
Covered-employee payrolfl $ 869,779 $ 688,280
Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 22.29% 27.42%
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Independent Auqitors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Honorable Members of the City Council
Fowler, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
City of Fowler's, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise City of Fowler's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 12, 2016,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Fowler's internal
control over financial reporting (internai control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Fowler's internal control.  Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Fowler's internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we
identified certain deficiencies in internaf control that we consider to be material weaknesses and other
deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of City of Fowler's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-2 to be
material weaknesses.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item
2015-1 to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Fowler's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

City of Fowler's Response to Findings
City of Fowler's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying scheduie of

findings and questioned costs. City of Fowler's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance.  Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bonedhandl; Cononn, & Facth

Fresno, California
January 12, 2016
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CITY OF FOWLER

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Summary of Auditors’ Results
(1) Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
o be material weakness{es)
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
(2) Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness{es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered

to be material weakness(es)

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for
maijor programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported in accordance with Circular A-133,
Section .510(a)

Identification of major programs:

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Qualified

X Yes

X Yes

Yes

X

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No
None reported

No



CITY OF FOWLER

SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

B. Financial Statement Findings

Finding Identification
2015 - 001 Internal Controls

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require adequate internal
controls to safeguard and preserve assets, protect against improper fund disbursement, and to ensure
all transactions are properly classified and recorded.

Condition

While performing procedures related to subsequent disbursements, we noted invoices totaling $12,489
for equipment rented during the 2014/15 fiscal year that had not been accrued at year-end. While
performing analytical procedures related to franchise fees received by the City from Waste
Management, we noted that the 1% quarter 2015 franchise fee payment of $26,462 due to the City had
not been accrued at year-end.

Effect

Based on available information, accounts payable and related expenditures were understated by
$12,489. The accounts receivable and related revenues were understated by $26,462.

Cause

A department of the City held onto current year invoices payable to a vendor instead of submitting them
to the Finance Department for proper recording and payment. The department which held onto the
invoices was recommended by City management to limit their expenditures during the year and
therefore held onto the invoices in efforts to show fower annual expenditures on the City's financial
records.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend the City review invoices paid subsequent to year-end to ensure that accounts payable
balance is accurate and implement a purchase order systemto  We also recommend the City review
ending revenue account balances to ensure that any outstanding amounts due to the City are properly
accrued.

City Response

The City will implement a purchase order system for proper internal control, along will procedures to
ensure that all expenses and revenues are accrued and identified in a timely manner at year end.
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B. Financial Statement Findings

Finding ldentification

2015 - 002 Internal Controls

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require internal controls to
safeguard and preserve assets, protect against improper fund disbursement, and to ensure all
transactions are properly classified and recorded.

Condition

The City has a policy in ptace for the use of a purchase order for all equipment acquisitions. However,
during our analysis of controls related to expenditures, we noted two vehicles that had been acquired
without the use of a purchase order.

Effect

The absence of using a purchase order system at the City results in inadequate control over
expenditures and increases the opportunity for asset misappropriation.

Cause

A purchase order was not being used for purchases of equipment and no formal procedures were
present for approving invoices prior to expenditures being incurred.

Questioned Costs

None

Recommendation

We recommend that the City utilize a purchase order system for all expenditures that exceed the
required dollar amount as established by Board policy and that all purchase orders are approved by the
Finance Director and/or City Manager.

City Response

The City will implement a purchase order system for proper internal control and budgetary management
of all expenditures.
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CITY OF FOWLER
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

City
Current Explanation if
Finding/Recommendation Status Not Implemented
1. During our review of accounts payable and Not The city will ensure it receives
accounts receivable year-end balances, it Implemented ~ and  records the  auditors
was noted that these amounts had not been adjustments related to these

items and to clear our prior year

properly accrued by the City. it is adjustments.

recommended that City personnel review
the accounts payable and accounts
receivable year-end detail and reconcile
these amounts back to the general ledger to
ensure both amounts agree and are properly
supported.  Without these reports, the
financia! status of the City cannot be
reasonably reported.

2. Ending cash balances reported in the City's implemented
bank reconciliation did not agree to amounts
reported in the City’s general ledger. We
also noted that bank reconciliations were not
being prepared on a monthly basis and a
review process was not in place to ensure
that the reconciliations were being prepared
on a timely basis. Personnel must ensure
that ending cash balances reported in the
bank reconciliations agree to the balances
reported in the City's general fedger.
Personnel must also perform  bank
reconciliations on a timely basis and post
any reconciling items noted as differences
between the bank and general ledger
balances.

3. During our review of year-end balances implemented

related to customer deposits, it was noted
that these amounts had not been reconciled
by the city. It is recommended that City
personnel review the year-end detail for
customer deposit accounts and reconcile
these amounts back to the general ledger to
ensure both amounts agree and are properly
supported.
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